
EXTRA-ORDINARY COUNCIL
AGENDA

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not 
take place in a physical location. 

Date: Tuesday, 5th May, 2020
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby                 Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest in Agenda Items 

3. Amendment of Constitution to deal with issues relating to Covid-19 and 
Virtual Meetings 

1 - 38

4. Date and Time of the Next Meeting 

Membership: Councillors Joan Hully (Chair), David Banks, Jackie Bowman, Hugh Branney, 
Graham Calvin, James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Gwynneth Everett, Allan Forster, 
Jeanette Forster, Fred Gleaves, Jeffrey Hailes, Mike Hawkins, Tom Higgins, Linda Jones-
Bulman, John Kane, Charles Maudling (Deputy Chair), Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, 
Sam Meteer, Graham Minshaw, David Moore, Steven Morgan, Brian O'Kane, Sam Pollen, 
Andy Pratt, Russell Studholme, Peter Tyson, Carl Walmsley, Eileen Weir, Doug Wilson and 
Felicity Wilson

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Full Council – 5TH MAY 2020

AMENDMENT OF CONSTITUTION TO DEAL WITH ISSUES RELATING TO 
COVID-19 AND VIRTUAL MEETINGS

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Deputy Mayor Councillor David Moore (Portfolio 
Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services (to 
include Democratic Services)).

LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services 
and Commercial Strategy.

REPORT AUTHOR: Clinton Boyce, Solicitor.

SUMMARY:

This report deals with a number of issues caused by the restrictions 
imposed as a result of Covid-19. The Council needs to continue to operate 
effectively and lawful decisions still need to be made. The Government, 
through the issue of new regulations, has permitted local authorities to 
hold virtual/remote meetings and this report sets out a number of 
amendments to the Council’s Constitution to facilitate such.

RECOMMENDATION:                                                                              

That the proposed chapter 20, as set out in Appendix A to this report, be 
approved and form part of the Council’s Constitution for the period from 
the 5th May 2020 until the 7th May 2021.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 As a result of Covid-19, a pandemic virus, a number of restrictions 
have been imposed by Government on the manner in which society 
operates both in law and in consequence of protecting one’s own 
health and that of others. At the same time there is a necessity for 
local authorities to be able to continue to function, not only in 
dealing with the Covid-19 emergency itself but also with day to day 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



business. Due to social distancing requirements public gatherings 
have been made unlawful except in a few specified circumstances, 
and public meetings have been ruled impractical on the grounds of 
safety. The legislator recognising this has introduced law enabling 
local authorities to hold remote “virtual” meetings.

1.2 This report proposes a number of changes to the Constitution to 
regulate how virtual meetings will operate and to make other minor 
changes to the constitution that will facilitate decision making in 
dealing with Covid-19. The proposed amendments to the 
Constitution are set out in the Appendix to the report.

2. PROPOSALS

2.1 Most of the Appendix is self-explanatory. This paragraph summarises 
the amendments in less formal language:

1.  The legislation allows a Member to attend meetings remotely 
provided three conditions are satisfied – that s/he can hear 
and be heard by other Members and the public; that members 
of the public can hear; and that members of the public where 
exercising a right to speak can be heard. Additionally, where 
practicable, to be seen by all as well. If these are satisfied a 
member attending remotely is deemed to attend and 
participate in the meeting.

2.  Meetings will clearly be led by technology and provision is 
made on how failures in technology before or during a meeting 
will be dealt with:

 If the meeting is in public and the public lose technical 
connection to the meeting, then it cannot proceed 
further. 

 If members lose connection to the meeting, then it will 
depend on who and how many. 

 If the Chair is lost, time will be required for the deputy 
chair to stand in; 

Page 2



3. In order to facilitate efficiency and engagement of Members 
during meetings, a hardcopy paper agenda and accompanying 
reports will be issued to all members at least 5 days in advance 
of the meeting.

4.  Additional guidance has been prepared – ‘Virtual Meetings: 
Meeting Protocol & Technical Guidance for Members’, which is 
appended to Chapter 20 and sets out a protocol for being at 
virtual meetings and notifying the chair that a Member wishes 
to ask a question.

5.  Virtual meetings, as now legislated, form part of the required 
qualifying attendance of a Member. The chapter  reminds 
members of the six month automatic disqualification 
Rule for non-attendance. Members who are having genuine 
difficulty, for whatever reason, in attending/participating at 
virtual meetings may request a dispensation by writing to the 
Monitoring Officer.

6. Each virtual meeting will have two Democratic Services Officers 
in attendance, one of whom at all times will act as a “meeting 
producer”.  This role will technically assist the Chair in the 
orderly and professional running of the meeting, and will 
monitor online member attendance throughout the duration 
of the meeting.

7. Voting will be by roll call, individual members will be required 
to respond in the usual way when requested by exception, to 
facilitate the timely running of the meeting, the Chair in 
consultation with Monitoring Officer, may move 
inconsequential, or, process agenda items to a vote by way of 
member assent.

8.  Whilst members of the public will be able to hear meetings, 
their right to participate is limited. Participation will continue 
in certain circumstances – where the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee requires evidence as part of scrutiny; Planning 

Page 3



Panel applicants and objectors and Licensing Committee/Sub-
Committee meetings; and other occasions where the need, not 
anticipated now, requires. 

In respect of Planning Panel the protocols controlling 
attendance at meeting and site visits are amended. 
Attendance is virtual at meetings with those who would 
normally speak being offered, if they prefer, the alternative of 
submitting a written statement which will be read out at the 
meeting. In respect of site visits the ability of county and parish 
councillors and specialist officers of other bodies to attend is 
removed. Instead they will be notified beforehand and invited 
to state, prior to the site visit, whether they wish any particular 
landmark/features/ issues to be considered by members. This 
temporary restriction is necessary to comply with the 
prohibition on public gatherings. 

9.  In respect of Full Council the current question and answer 
sessions may not be conducted with the same flow, ease and 
interaction by virtual means facilitated by technology. The 
rules are therefore unchanged but allow the Chair to limit 
members questions if s/he considers that the technology is not 
capable of dealing with the rights presently afforded by rule 11 
and suggests that this might include:

 removing the right to ask supplementary questions; 
 restricting the number of questions on any one item; 
 requiring questions and answers on the Executive report 

to be dealt with by email; 
 reducing the times allowed for asking questions; and
  arranging the agenda so that questions are taken as a 

last item (to ensure that main business is taken first).

10. In respect of financial regulations there is a requirement for 
external income above £200,000 to be approved by Full 
Council. An amendment is proposed to dis-apply this so as to 
allow grants from Government for dealing with Covid-19 issues 

Page 4



to be received automatically and those from elsewhere to be 
delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the 
Section 151 Officer, the Elected Mayor and Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

11.  Under ‘Miscellaneous’ Members are reminded of 
confidentiality when attending remote meetings. Also in 
respect of pending and new code of conduct complaints 
grounds for rejecting a complaint are moved to an earlier stage 
of the process and determinable by the Monitoring Officer in 
consultation with the Chair of the Standards and Ethics 
Committee and an independent person.

3. CONCLUSIONS

3.1 Chapter 20 is a temporary measure to enable business to continue 
for as long as Government restrictions are in place and/or the safety 
of all. As soon as it is possible for business to return to normal much 
of Chapter 20 will be dis-applied with all dis-applied barring an 
extension of the legislation, the 6th May 2021.

3.2 It is recommended that the Appendix attached hereto is approved as 
a new chapter 20 to temporarily form part of the Council’s 
Constitution.

4.     STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

4.1 Legal Comments are: Included within the report; Solicitor is report 
author.

4.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: MO is co-author.  The 
proposed Chapter 20 to the Constitution and accompanying 

Page 5



procedure rules provide the means and guidance for the conduct of 
any remote meeting of the Council and its various Committees and 
Sub-Committees, held under the provisions of s78 of the Coronavirus 
Act 2020.  They are applied notwithstanding any other current or 
pre-existing standing orders or any other rules of the Council 
governing meetings and remain valid until 7th may 2021. This means 
that, wherever there is a conflict, chapter 20 takes precedence in 
relation to any virtual remote meeting.

4.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: There are no additional 
financial implications for the Council arising from the proposed 
recommendation.

4.4 EIA Comments:  Consideration has been given to whether the 
provisions in chapter 20 could constitute conduct prohibited by the 
Equality Act. The provisions however apply to all persons irrespective 
of protected characteristics and will therefore not constitute direct 
or indirect discrimination on that basis. Most of the rights to 
participate in local authority business are preserved or otherwise 
modified to enable a person to adequately participate in matters.  
Where impact could occur, it should be slight and otherwise justified 
and a proportionate means of achieving the legitimate aim of 
protecting Members, staff and the general public from Covid-19 by 
mitigating the spread of infection.

4.5 Policy Framework: Not applicable.

4.6     Other Consultee Comments, if any: None.

5 RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

5.1 In order for members to fully participate in a virtual meeting a copy 
of the software called MS Teams running on a laptop is required by 
each participating elected member and supporting council officers. 
Each person equipped with a laptop must have signed the Council 
Acceptable Use Policy (AUP). MS Teams requires an active Internet 
connection to the laptop in order to work. The capacity and quality of 

Page 6



the Internet connection used will directly impact the quality of the 
voice and video experience on communicating with the laptop 
connected

6 HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE 
THE RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED?

The proposals will be managed by the Electoral & Democratic 
Services Manager and ICT Manager.

7       WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM  
THIS REPORT?

Preservation of decision making processes with the minimum of 
difficulty.

List of Appendices 

Proposed Chapter 20 attaching member guidance - ‘Virtual Meetings: 
Meeting Protocol & Technical Guidance for Members’.

List of Background Documents:

1. Coronavirus Act 2020 and the Local Authorities and Police and Crime 
Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020; and

2. LLG and ADSO Remote Meetings Protocol and Procedure Rules.

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

COPELAND BOROUGH COUNCIL – AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTION DUE TO 
COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The amendments set out in this document were approved by Council on the [
] and apply to meetings of Full Council, its Committees (and their 

sub-committees) and Panels and the Executive until the 7th May 2021. 

The amendments form a new temporary chapter 20 to the Constitution.

Chapter 20
Covid-19 Pandamic Issues

20.1 This chapter is made in consequence of the Coronavirus Act 2020 
and the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime 
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (‘the 
Regulations’) which allow local authority meetings to relax certain 
procedural matters relating to meetings and for meetings to be 
held remotely through the use of electronic, digital or virtual 
locations such as internet locations, web addresses or conference 
call telephone numbers.

20.2 In the event of conflict between existing provisions in the other 
chapters of the constitution and this chapter, this chapter will take 
precedence. Where there remains doubt over the application of a 
provision then the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the 
Chair of Council will resolve the conflict with public safety and the 
proper functioning of the Council being paramount 
considerations. 

20.3 This Chapter deals with the following matters:

20.4 Dates, time and place of virtual meetings;
20.5 Management of virtual meetings;
20.6 Protocols for members in attending virtual meetings:
20.7 Virtual Meeting procedure; 
20.8 Virtual meeting etiquette;
20.9 Member meeting attendance and the six months rule;
20.10 Quorum at virtual meetings;
20.11 Voting at virtual meetings;

Page 9



2

20.12 Rights of the press and public at virtual meetings;
20.13 Amendments to other chapters of the Constitution;
20.14 Miscellaneous; and
20.15 Further amendment delegation during regulation period.

20.4 Dates, time and place of virtual meetings

20.4.1 At the AGM, Council, will be asked to agree a “virtual calendar” of 
meetings for the municipal year 2020/21. All the meetings shown 
in that programme will be held virtually unless and until advice 
from Government varies Regulations made under section 78 of 
the Coronavirus Act 2020. Unless the Regulations are repealed 
before the 7th May 2021 a member will still be entitled to use 
remote facilities to access any meeting that is then held in a single 
physical place.

20.4.2 Meetings will be scheduled for 2.00pm unless agreement is 
obtained by the Monitoring Officer from the Chair to an 
alternative time.

20.4.3 The place of a meeting will be indicated as being held remotely. 
Where a member is living remotely or otherwise cannot, despite 
using reasonable endeavours, enable the use of the technology 
provided,  then the member may make a request to the 
Monitoring Officer to be physically present at the Council 
technical control hub which will be located within the Copeland 
Centre. 

20.4.4 The Regulations allow an authority to alter the frequency, move or 
cancel virtual meetings, without requirement for further notice. It 
may be necessary to cancel or move a meeting if there are 
difficulties with technology or quorum in the run up to a meeting. 
If this occurs the Chair, after consultation with the Monitoring 
Officer, may cancel or postpone a meeting to a new time and/or 
time and date.

20.5 Management of Virtual Meetings

Page 10



3

20.5.1 The Regulations set out some essential requirements. These are 
that the member in remote attendance is able for the duration of 
the meeting:

(a) to hear, and where practicable see, and be so heard and, 
where practicable,  be seen by, the other members in 
attendance;

(b) to hear, and where practicable see, and be so heard and, 
where practicable, be seen by, any members of the public 
entitled to attend the meeting in order to exercise a right to 
speak at the meeting, and

(c) to be so heard and, where practicable, be seen by any other 
members of the public attending the meeting.

(i) For all purposes of the Constitution the term “meeting” is 
not limited in meaning to a meeting of persons all of whom, 
or any of whom, are present in the same place, for which 
purposes any reference to:  

 
(ii) “place” is to be interpreted as where a meeting is held, or 

to be held, includes reference to more than one place 
including electronic, digital or virtual locations such as 
internet locations, web addresses or conference call 
telephone numbers: and 

 
(iii) “open to the public” includes access to the meeting being 

through remote means including (but not limited to) video 
conferencing, live webcast, and live interactive streaming 
and where a meeting is accessible to the public through 
such remote means the meeting is open to the public 
whether or not members of the public are able to attend 
the meeting in person.

20.5.2 In other words, any member participating in a meeting remotely, 
must when they are speaking, be able to be heard (and ideally 
seen) by all other Members in attendance, and the remote 
participant must, in turn, be able to hear (and ideally see) those 
other Members participating.  In addition, a remote participant 

Page 11



4

must be able to be heard by, and in turn hear any members of the 
public entitled to attend the meeting and who exercise a right to 
speak at the meeting.  

20.5.3 The Chair will normally confirm at the outset of a Committee or 
Executive meeting that they can see and hear all participating 
members (this is unlikely to be practical for a meeting of full 
council). Any Member participating remotely should also confirm 
at the outset and at any reconvening of the meeting that they can 
see and hear the proceedings and the other participants. 

The attendance of those members at the meeting will be recorded 
by the Democratic Services Officer.  The confirmation of 
attendance will be on the basis of a verbal roll call to which the 
attending member will affirm simply by responding “present”. 

20.5.4 If a technical difficulty results in the breakdown of the 
communications facility used for remote attendance, the Chair of 
the meeting will declare a short recess while the fault is 
addressed. 

If the fault means that members of the public cannot access the 
meeting and access by them cannot be restored within a 
reasonable period then the remaining business (other than 
exempt information) will be considered at an alternative time and 
date proposed by the Chair. If he or she does not fix a date, the 
remaining business will be considered at the next ordinary 
meeting.

If the fault means that members of the public can still access the 
meeting and only certain members are affected, the Chair may call 
a short adjournment of up to five minutes or so to determine 
whether the connection can quickly be re-established, either by 
video technology or telephone in the alternative. If the connection 
is not restored within that time, the meeting should continue to 
deal with the business whilst this happens, providing the meeting 
remains quorate and the public are able to hear. If access cannot 
be restored and a number of Members are affected the Chair may 
either (a) adjourn the remainder of the business to a specified 
time and date or to the next ordinary meeting or (b) provided the 

Page 12



5

meeting remains quorate allow the meeting to continue or (c) if 
the Members lost are all of one party or political balance is  
substantially lost then the Chair may alternatively try to contact 
the ‘lost’ Members and if they consent to the meeting proceeding 
without them then the Chair may allow the meeting to continue 
provided that the quorum in paragraph 20.10 is still satisfied.

20.6 Protocols for Members in attending virtual meetings 

20.6.1  The proper officer will give the requisite notice to the public of the 
time of the meeting, and the agenda, together with details of how 
to join the meeting which will be  available on the Council’s 
website at www.copeland.gov.uk 

 
20.6.2  Members will be notified of a remote meeting by email and all 

agenda papers will be available on the Council’s website and via 
the agenda software, ModGov, or other electronic means as 
appropriate. 

In order to facilitate efficiency and engagement of Members 
during meetings, a hardcopy paper agenda and accompanying 
reports will be issued to all members of the relevant Committee or 
Council. This will be issued 5 clear working days in advance of the 
meeting to which the papers pertain, wherever possible.

20.6.3 During this time, we ask that apologies be submitted in writing to 
the Democratic Services Team 24 hours in advance of meetings. 
These should be emailed to memberservices@copeland.gov.uk

 
20.6.4  The ‘place’ at which the meeting is held may be at a council 

building or may be where the organiser of the meeting is located 
or may be an electronic or a digital or virtual location, a web 
address or a conference call telephone number; or could be a 
number of these combined. The meeting may also be held in a 
meeting room with a proportion of the membership and any 
participating public additionally attending remotely.  

 
20.6.5 References in the Constitution to the terms “notice”, “summons”, 

“agenda”, “report”, “written record” and “background papers” 
when referred to as being a document that is: 

Page 13

http://www.copeland.gov.uk/
mailto:memberservices@copeland.gov.uk


6

 
(a) “open to inspection” shall include for these and all other 
purposes as being published on the website of the council; and 

 
(b) to be published, posted or made available at offices of the 
council shall include publication on the website of the council.

20.6.6 The Council’s ICT Manager will ensure that ‘attending’ Members 
and attending officers are equipped and enabled to attend a 
meeting remotely. Members are encouraged to use such facilities 
provided by the council to attend a meeting remotely. Prior to use 
of electronic means to transact any council business or participate 
in any council virtual meetings, each member must have agreed to 
and signed the council’s Acceptable User Policy.

20.7 Virtual Meeting Procedures

20.7.1     A designated “meeting producer” from  Democratic Services  will 
be present to control the video, telephone or conferencing 
technology for remote access and attendance and to administer 
the public and member interaction, engagement and connections 
on the instruction of the Chair. 

20.7.2   The council will utilise a technological solution that will enable 
members participating in meetings remotely to indicate their wish 
to speak via this solution, replacing the physical practices or rules 
concerning raising one’s hand or standing to be recognised or 
expressing a desire to speak. 

20.7.3  In respect of key Committees and at Executive meetings, it will 
assist the meeting if those members who wish to speak on a 
particular item could indicate their wish to speak to the Chair and 
to the Democratic Services Officer in advance of the start of the 
meeting where possible. Political groups are also encouraged to 
co-ordinate this activity wherever possible in respect of full 
council meetings and other meetings likely to result in a high 
number of requests to speak. 

 
20.7.4 The Chair will follow the rules set out in the Constitution when 

determining who may speak, as well as the order and priority of 

Page 14



7

speakers and the content and length of questions and debate in 
the normal way. 

 
20.7.5     The Chair of Full Council, at the beginning of the meeting, will 

explain the protocol for member and public participation and the 
rules of debate. The Chair’s ruling during the debate will be final.

20.8 Virtual Meeting Etiquette

20.8. 1 Additional guidance has been prepared – ‘Virtual Meetings: 
Meeting Protocol & Technical Guidance for Members’ – which is 
attached to this chapter and members are urged to read that 
document prior to attending virtual meetings. Additionally 
Members are required to adhere to the following etiquette during 
remote meeting attendance: 

• Committee members are asked to join the meeting no later 
than fifteen minutes before the start to allow themselves 
and the “meetings producer” (or Democratic Services 
Officers) the opportunity to test the equipment and 
functionality of the remote technology;

• Any camera (video-feed) should show a non-descript 
background or, where possible, a virtual background and 
members should be careful to not allow exempt or 
confidential papers to be seen in the video-feed; 

• Members should be attired appropriately for the duration 
of the meeting remembering this is a public meeting and 
live streaming will be taking place;

• Members should ensure all other electronic devices, 
including recording devices such as Alexa,  are switched off 
for the duration of the meeting;

• Type their name on joining the meeting in full, e.g., “Cllr 
Joanne Smith” (where the technological solution employed 
by the authority enables this); 

Page 15



8

• All Members should switch off their video facility and keep 
microphones muted when not talking;

• Rather than raising one’s hand or rising to be recognised or 
to speak, members should avail themselves of the remote 
process for requesting to be heard and use the Teams chat 
facility to indicate to the chair that they wish to speak. 
Members will unmute their microphone and turn their 
cameras on when the Chair invites them to speak;

• The MS Team chat facility must not be used for individual 
conversations between councillors during a virtual meeting; 

• Only speak when invited to by the Chair;

• Only one person may speak at any one time, all other 
persons in attendance must remain on microphone mute; 

• Turn on the microphone and also the video-feed (if 
available or unless speaking to a diagram, presentation slide 
or drawing), then state your name before you make a 
comment. 

• When referring to a specific report, page, or slide, mention 
the report, page number, or slide so that all Members have 
a clear understanding of what is being discussed at all 
times.

20.9 Member meeting attendance and the 6-month rule

20.9.1 Members must attend a meeting every six months otherwise they 
are automatically disqualified from Council. Members of the 
Executive must also attend a meeting of the Executive or perform 
a function of the Executive every six months otherwise that are 
automatically disqualified from Council.  (Section 85 of the Local 
Government Act 1972). A Member will  ‘unless the failure was due 
to some reason approved by the authority before the expiry of 
that period, cease to be a member of the authority’.

Page 16



9

20.9.2 Members may experience difficulty in attending meetings during 
this difficult time and any requests for a dispensation must be 
made to the Monitoring Officer in a timely manner as these 
cannot be granted retrospectively. A request should set out clearly 
why the member has been unable to attend meetings and when it 
is expected that s/he will be able to return to meetings. Absence 
since the last meeting the member was able to attend until the 
12th May will be due to Covid-19 issues when the council was 
unable to run scheduled meetings. The Monitoring Officer in 
considering the request may make an appropriate 
recommendation to Full Council.

20.9.3 It is a Member’s own responsibility to monitor their individual 
attendance. Members will not receive a reminder from 
Democratic Services indicating continued and qualifying 
attendance at meetings.

20.9.4 For clarity, any informal meeting such as a mayoral briefing, does 
not count as qualifying member attendance. 

20.9.5 The Regulations state that remote attendance counts as 
attendance at a meeting provided that the conditions in 
paragraph 20.5.1 are satisfied.

20.10 Quorum at virtual meetings 

20.10.1 At any point during a virtual meeting it is recognised that 
technology may cause temporary or prolonged disruption to the 
flow and conduct during meetings. The law  requiring a stipulated 
number of members to be present at a Full Council meeting has 
been disapplied due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

20.10.2 The normal quorum requirement for meetings as set out in the 
Council’s Constitution will also apply to a remote meeting.

20.10.3 The number of members required to satisfy a quorum are 
generally low and it is intended to remain with these numbers – 
one quarter for Full Council (9); the Executive and all Committees 
(3) and Licensing Sub-Committees (full sub-committee of 3 
members only). 

Page 17



10

20.10.4 The attendance of those members at the meeting will be recorded 
at the start of each meeting by the Democratic Services officer

20.10.5 During the course of a meeting Members’ attendance will be 
monitored by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance. 

20.10.6 If individual Member connection(s)s are lost, the Chair may 
adjourn the meeting in order to recover lost connections, etc. If 
connection cannot be restored the meeting will continue, as set 
out in paragraph 2.5.4, and a vote will be taken without the 
attendance of the ‘lost’ member(s),subject to quorum still being 
achieved of those members remaining connected to the meeting.

20.10.7 If connection is successfully re-established, the remote member(s) 
will be deemed to have returned, and be participating, at the 
point of technical re-establishment.  The meeting producer will 
constantly monitor participation.

During the hearing of a regulatory application (e.g. planning or 
licensing) this will only apply if the member is sufficiently and 
quickly able to ‘catch-up’. Obviously this will depend upon the 
length of interruption and ability of the forum to allow the 
member to catch-up.

20.10.8 If technology fails for a wholly remote meeting, and the meeting is 
no longer available for public participation, any decisions made 
during the failed connection period could be challenged as 
unlawful. It is important to note that the public accessing the 
meeting by remote means is different from the public attending to 
exercise a right to speak. A technological failure removing the 
ability for the public to access the meeting by remote means 
renders the whole meeting incapable of proceeding (as described 
above). A member of the public who attends to exercise their 
right to speak and is unable to do so renders only their item 
incapable of proceeding. (This is set out paragraph 20.12.3 below).  

Page 18



11

20.11  Voting at virtual meetings

20.11.1 When the Chair is satisified that there has been sufficient debate 
and (if the rules of the meeting require) there is a proposer and 
seconder for the agenda item being discussed, the Chair will 
progress to making a decision by way of a vote.

20.11.2 Voting, at virtual meetings, will be by a roll call vote.

20.11.3 Provided that the Chair is satisfied that the meeting is quorate  
then s/he shall indicate his/her vote first. The Chair will then 
proceed to read each Member’s name out and the Member shall 
indicate whether s/he is ‘for’ or ‘against’ the recommendation or 
proposal before the meeting, or, votes to ‘abstain’.

20.11.4 If there are equal number of votes for and against, the Chair will 
have a second and casting vote. There will be no restriction of 
how the person presiding at the meeting chooses to exercise a 
casting vote.

20.11.5 While the minutes will record the decision of the meeting the 
names of the members for, against or abstaining will not be 
recorded unless a member has specifically requested that a 
recorded vote be taken or the matter relates to approval of 
budget.

20.11.6 The only exception to 20.11.2 above, will be during Full Council 
meeting, where the Chair, in agreement with the Monitoring 
Officer in attendance, can utilise and invoke a general assent for a 
specific agenda item.  If agreed, the Chair will make the 
announcement, and consent to an agenda item 
recommendation/proposal will be taken to have member 
agreement after the passing of a 30 second interval with no 
Member dissent.

 20.12 Rights of the press and public at virtual meetings

20.12.1  Chapter 3 of this Constitution – Citizens and the Council – will 
continue to apply subject to the following:

3.01(b) The right to attend meetings will be limited to 
attending remotely;

Page 19



12

3.01(c) The requirement for a member of the public wishing 
to ask a question at Full Council or the Executive in 
person is removed and replaced with a right that a 
question can still be submitted in accordance with 
chapter 3 but must be provided at least 3 clear 
working days prior to the meeting and submitted to 
the Monitoring Officer. At the meeting the Elected 
Mayor, or other Executive member, will read out the 
question submitted together with the name of the 
person submitting it and also an answer to the 
question. Whilst the questioner may observe the 
proceedings remotely there is no right to participate 
in the debate.

20.12.2   Agenda and background papers, other than those exempt from 
publication or containing confidential information, will be 
available on the council’s web site in the usual manner.

20.12.3   Other than as set out in this paragraph 20.12.3 members of the 
public will not have any  right to speak at meetings. There are four 
exceptions to this rule:

(1) Where the Overview and Scrutiny Committee wish to 
receive evidence from members of the community on 
matters within their terms of reference and in accordance 
with chapter 8 of the Constitution; 

(2)  At Planning Panel meetings those permitted to speak in 
accordance with the ‘Procedure for Speaking at Planning 
Panel Meetings’ will continue to be allowed to be heard. 
However that procedure will be adapted as follows:

General Any reference to an ‘opportunity to speak in 
front of the Panel’ or ‘attend before the Panel’ 
is to be construed as attending remotely via 
the links referred to in paragraph 20.5.1 above;

Paragraph 2 That requests to speak are to be submitted at 
least 6 working days before the meeting and 
for the request to ‘set out concisely the points 

Page 20



13

to be raised verbally at the meeting’. The 
following words are added to paragraph 2: “For 
meetings held remotely a person wishing to 
speak, may as an alternative to speaking via 
live link, submit a written statement instead. 
This should accompany the request to speak to 
the convened Panel. At the meeting a 
Democratic Services Officer will read out that 
statement, on behalf of the person choosing 
not to attend, at the appropriate time during 
the hearing of the application or matter.

In respect of site visits these will still be necessary. The council has 
previously adopted a ‘Protocol for Site Visits’. This Protocol is 
adapted as follows:

Paragraph 2 Requests for Site Visits – this allows the 
Planning and Place Manager or the Panel itself 
to request a site visit. The following words are 
added to this paragraph: “Provided that in both 
cases the site inspection must be essential to 
the determination of the application and in 
view of the Council’s Solicitor will not 
contravene the The Health Protection 
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) 
Regulations 2020 or subsequent legislation 
controlling public gatherings”.

Paragraphs This provides a right for other public authority
3.4 and 3.5 technical officers, county councillors, parish 

councillors and the ward councillor to attend 
the site inspection. This right is disapplied and 
replaced with the following words: “3.4 No 
person other than  Planning Panel members, 
the ward councillor(s) and  council officers shall 
attend a site inspection. Prior to a site visit 
taking place an applicant and objectors will be 
advised of that site visit and invited to make, in 
writing, in advance, any specific features/issues 
that they wish members to have a look at 

Page 21



14

whilst on the site visit. At the site inspection 
members will be advised of any such requests 
and members will use reasonable endeavours 
to inspect those particular features/issues. The 
site visit will, where reasonably practicable, be 
visually recorded with audio from the Planning 
and Place Manager or a Planning Officer and, if 
appropriate, can be shown at the Planning 
Panel virtual meeting or otherwise be made 
available on request”.

Paragraphs These relate to the rights of non-council 
3.10, 3.12 officers/members to speak at a site visit and 
and 3.15  are disapplied because such are not attending 

a site visit in consequence of the above 
amendment.

(3) At Licensing Committees and Licensing Sub-Committee 
meetings those permitted to speak will at Licensing 
Committees be applicants for taxi and other licences and 
any referees speaking on their behalf and at Licensing Sub-
Committees will be those permitted to speak as set out in 
the respective statutory hearings regulations for Licensing 
Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 applications and matters.

Procedures for hearings are regulated by the hearing 
regulations and procedures adopted by the Committee 
since 2005. The procedures set out for considering 
applications and matters do not need altering and the 
procedures will still be followed save that the hearings will 
be held virtually. In respect of site visits these are 
infrequent in licensing and should be considered as and 
when they arise in terms of whether they conflict with the 
2020 Regulations mentioned above, who needs to attend, 
the timing of the visit and whether the visit will be in 
premises of someone self-isolating. The question can be 
resolved at a preliminary virtual hearing of an application.

(4) Where a matter, not contemplated, requires Members of 
the public or representatives of other public bodies to 

Page 22



15

address members formally. In such circumstances the 
Monitoring Officer shall determine which is the appropriate 
forum and then, in consultation with the relevant Chair and 
the ICT Manager determine how best the address should be 
made within the rules prescribed above.

In all cases the three conditions set out in paragraph 20.5.1 must 
be satisfied at meetings.   

20.12.4  The Council will continue to take into account the needs of any 
disabled members or members of the public when considering the 
practicality of a remotely attended meetings.  However, the 
inability of an individual to travel to the meeting location 
previously would not require additional measures to be taken and 
it is important to recognise that every need is unable to be 
catered for nor will its limitation prevent the use and enablement 
of remote meetings. 

20.13  Amendments to other chapters of the Constitution 

20.13.1 In the Council Procedure Rules contained within chapter 5 the 
following amendments are made:

Rule 11 (Questions by members) – add a new rule 11.10 as follows 
“The Chair of Council may, if s/he considers that the technology is 
not capable of dealing with the rights afforded by this rule 11 
reduce the ability of members to ask questions. This might include 
removing the right to ask supplementary questions; restricting the 
number of questions on any one item; requiring questions and 
answers on the Executive report to be dealt with by email; 
reducing the times allowed for asking questions; and arranging 
the agenda so that questions on information reports e.g. the 
Executive report are taken as a last item (to ensure that main 
business is taken first).

Rule 14 (Rules of debate at Council)- in 14.1 items (a), (b), (c), (d) 
and (g) are disapplied. Instead the rules set out in paragraphs      
20. 6 to 20.8 above shall apply. 

Page 23



16

Rule 15 (Voting) – rule 15.3, relating to a vote by a show of hands 
is disapplied. 

Rule 16 (Public disturbance) – amend so that Chair can require 
that a member of the public is disconnected by the meeting 
producer and prohibited from rejoining the meeting rather than 
asked to leave the building.

Rule 21 (Suspension and amendment of these rules) – In addition 
to the power contained in Rule 21 the Chair, in consultation with 
the Monitoring Officer, may suspend during a meeting any 
standing order/amend the procedure rules for that meeting if 
business is becoming difficult to transact in an orderly and 
professional manner due to:

 the number of registered/expected people accessing   
technology;

  robustness of technology to cope with demand;

  Consisitent, frequent and/or intermittent disconnections;

  falling below required quorum, for whatever reason; or

 the three conditions set out in paragraph 20.5.1 not being 
met.

20.13.2 In the Financial Regulations:

•    disapply any requirement to seek Council approval to 
receiving central government or other public sector grants, 
distributed to more than one local authority, to deal with 
the Covid-19 pandemic; and

•  in respect of other grants receivable to deal with the Covid-
19 pandemic acceptance of those grants is delegated to the 
Chief Executive in consultation with the section 151 officer 
and the Elected Mayor and Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Page 24



17

20.14 Miscellaneous

This paragraph deals with a number of ancillary amendments.

20.14.1 Declarations of interest

Any Member participating in a remote meeting who declares a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, or other declarable interest, in any 
item of business that would normally require them to leave the 
room, must also leave the remote meeting. Their departure will 
be confirmed by the Democratic Services Officer who will invite 
the relevant member by link, email or telephone, to re-join the 
meeting at the appropriate time when the agenda item in 
question has concluded. Where a Member is required to leave the 
meeting, the means of remote attendance and access is to be 
severed whilst any discussion or vote takes place in respect of the 
item or items of business which the Member or co-opted Member 
may not participate. 

20.14.2 Exclusion of Public and Press 
 

There are times when council meetings are not open to the public, 
when confidential, or “exempt” issues (as defined in Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972) are under consideration. 
Where the technology is available, the Democratic Services Officer 
or meeting producer will ensure that there are no members of the 
public in remote attendance or remotely accessing the meeting 
that are able to hear or see the proceedings once the exclusion 
has been agreed by the meeting.  

 
Each Member in remote attendance must ensure and verbally 
declare that there are no other persons present who are not 
entitled to be (either hearing or seeing) consideration of such 
items, and/or recording the proceedings. 

 
Any Member in remote attendance who failed to disclose that 
there were in fact persons present who were not so entitled may 
be in breach of the Members’ Code of Conduct responsibilities.  

 

Page 25



18

20.14.3 Public Access to Meeting Documentation following the meeting 
 

Members of the public may access minutes, decision and other 
relevant documents through the Council’s website. The definition 
of access to information and available to the public is the same as 
at paragraph 20.6.5 above.

20.14.4 Code of conduct procedures

Prior to officers and members working remotely a number of code 
of conduct complaints were pending. For the duration that this 
Chapter 20 is in force the following changes are made to the 
procedure for determining pending and new code of conduct 
complaints as agreed by Full Council on the 9th September 2019:

In paragraph 3 replace  the words “The Monitoring Officer will, in 
consultation with the Independent Person, reject complaints 
including if a complaint is considered to be frivolous or vexatious” 
with “The Monitoring Officer will, in consultation with the 
Independent Person and the Chair of the Standards and Ethics 
Committees, reject complaints if a complaint is considered 
frivolous or vexatious or any of the critera set out in paragraph 
13(i)(1) to (13) apply”.

Any specified period for taking a certain procedural step under the 
adopted procedure is changed to ‘as soon as is reasonably 
practicable’ given the conflicting priorities on the Council due to 
Covid-19’.

20.14.5 Data Protection Implications

A Council may use information about elected Members, members 
of the public and businesses to enable it to carry out specific 
functions for which a Council is responsible and to provide a 
statutory service.  A Council publishes a record of all Council 
decisions and meetings, as well as any background information 
and reports that inform decisions. 

A council keeps records about members of the public (both 
residents and people living outside the district), businesses, 

Page 26



19

council employees and elected members.  These may be written 
down (manual records), or kept on a computer (electronic 
records).

Processing of personal information is lawful to the extent that it is:

• necessary for the compliance with a legal obligation (Article 
6(1)(c) General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 
(GDPR)) to which a Council is subject including the Local 
Government Acts 1972 and 1985, the Coronavirus Act 2020 
and the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020.

• necessary for the performance of a task carried out in the 
public interest or in the exercise of official authority vested 
in a council (Article 6(1)(e) General Data Protection 
Regulation (EU) 2016/679 (GDPR)), namely activities that 
support and promote democratic engagement (Section 8 of 
the Data Protection Act 2018).

In addition to holding personal information in paper and online 
forms, by telephone and email a council will process personal 
information through audio and video recordings of Council and 
Committee meetings using the collaborative and conversational 
platforms “Microsoft Teams” and “Microsoft Teams Live”.  For 
purposes of training, monitoring, transparency and clarity, all MS 
Teams live virtual meetings will be recorded.  All recordings will be 
held until the final virtual meeting minutes have been approved.

A council may share personal information both internally and 
externally as described below:

• The general public as the majority of council meetings are 
transacted in public; agendas and reports for all Council and 
Committee meetings are made available to the public in 
advance of the meeting; and minutes and details of 

Page 27



20

decisions are also published on the relevant council website 
once available;

• When the law requires a council to pass on information 
under special circumstances; and

• Crime prevention or the detection of fraud as part of the 
National Fraud Initiative

A council will keep personal information as long as required by law 
or by a council’s specific business requirements.  The council has a 
records retention policy in place setting out the types of records 
they hold, and how long they we hold them for.

20.14.6 Delegation

References to a specifc officer in this Chapter 20 include reference 
to persons designated by that officer where they are unable to 
perform a role. For example, ‘Monitoring Officer’ includes a 
person designated by her, from time to time, for carrying out 
specific roles required by this chapter.

20.15 Further amendment delegation during regulation period.

Questions and issues will arise in implementing remote meetings. 
In the event that such do arise which paragraph 20.2 cannot deal 
with then the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Chair of 
Council may make amendments to the Constitution to resolve the 
particular question or issue either as a single occurrence or for the 
duration that this Chapter applies.

Page 28



Virtual Meetings

Meeting Protocol & Technical 
Guidance for Members

April 2020

Page 29



2
1        Introduction

1.1       The Government has permitted local authorities to hold virtual/remote 
meetings.

1.2       Legislation allows a Member to attend meetings remotely provided three 
conditions are satisfied – that s/he can hear and be heard by other Members 
and the public; that members of the public can hear; and that members of 
the public where exercising a right to speak can be heard. Additionally, 
where practicable, to be seen by all as well. If these are satisfied a Member 
attending remotely is deemed to attend the meeting.

1.3       This guide is intended to act as a quick reference guide for Members, and 
should be read in conjunction with the rules set out in Chapter 20 of the 
Councils Constitution.

2.      Virtual Meetings 

2.1          Protocol

2.1.1        A core group of chief and senior officers will participate in a Full Council 
virtual meeting from the Copeland Centre. A small ‘production team’ will 
also be in physical attendance, largely comprising of ICT staff, who will be 
responsible for enabling, managing and monitoring the technology. 

2.1.2       The Council’s ICT Manager will ensure that both ‘participating’ Members and 
officers are equipped and enabled to attend a meeting remotely. Members 
will be required to use the technology provided by the Council to participate 
in a virtual meeting. Prior to transacting any Council business or participating 
in any Council virtual meetings, each Member must have agreed to, and 
signed, the Council’s Acceptable User Policy.

2.1.3 A designated “meeting producer” from Democratic Services will control the 
video, telephone or conferencing technology for remote access and 
attendance, and, to administer the public and Member interaction, 
engagement and connections, on the direction of the Chair. 

2.1.4 Members will be notified of a remote meeting by email and all agenda 
papers will be available on the Council’s website and via the agenda 
software, ModGov, or other electronic means as appropriate. 

Page 30



3

2.1.5 In order to facilitate efficiency and engagement of Members during 
meetings, a hardcopy paper agenda and accompanying reports will be issued 
to all members at least 5 days in advance of the meeting.

2.1.6 During this time, we ask that apologies be submitted in writing to the 
Democratic Services Team 24 hours in advance of meetings. These should be 
emailed to memberservices@copeland.gov.uk

2.1.7 In respect of key committees and at Executive meetings, it will assist the 
meeting if those Members who wish to speak on a particular agenda item 
could indicate their wish to speak to the Chair and to the Democratic 
Services Officer in advance of the start of the meeting where possible. 
Political groups are also encouraged to co-ordinate this activity wherever 
possible in respect of Full Council meetings and other meetings likely to 
result in a high number of requests to speak. 

2.1.9 In order to ensure that meetings run smoothly, if any member has any 
queries relating to their Declarations of Interest, member should raise these 
with the Democratic Services team by email to 
memberservices@copeland.gov.uk in advance of the meeting.   

2.1.10 The minutes from the previous meeting should be read in advance and any 
queries arising from them should be raised with the Democratic Services 
Team and in turn will be discussed with the Chair ahead of the meeting at 
which they are due to be approved.  

2.2          The Meeting

2.2.1       The Chair will open the meeting promptly, at the designated time; please   
ensure you are ready to start at the planned time to avoid any interruptions.

2.2.2       The Chair will ask Democratic Services/meeting producer to perform a roll 
call of all Members who are participating in the meeting; member response 
required is ‘present’.   As part of the roll call the meeting producer will ask 
Members to confirm that they have received and read the agenda and 
reports provided.

Page 31

mailto:memberservices@copeland.gov.uk
mailto:memberservices@copeland.gov.uk


4
2.2.3 The meeting producer, will read out the names of any Members that have 

submitted apologies in advance of the meeting. 

2.2.4 Minutes will be agreed, subject to any notifications received and 
amendments been required. Agreement will be by member accent on 
request of the Chair.  Hard copies of the minutes will then be signed by the 
Chair at a later date.  

2.2.5 Any member participating in a remote meeting who declares a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other declarable interest, in any item of business that 
would normally require them to leave the room, must also leave the remote 
meeting, by disconnecting from MS Teams on their laptop.. Their departure 
will be confirmed by the Democratic Services Officer or meeting facilitator, 
who will invite the relevant member by link, email or telephone, to re-join 
the meeting at the appropriate time. 

2.2.6 At all virtual meetings, any agenda items that requires a vote, will be 
undertaken by a member roll call.  The only exception this, will be during Full 
Council meeting, where the Chair, in agreement with the Monitoring Officer in 
attendance, can utilise and invoke a general assent for a specific agenda item.  
If agreed, the Chair will make the announcement, and consent to an agenda 
item recommendation/proposal will be taken to have member agreement 
after the passing of a 30 second interval with no Member dissent.

2.3            Etiquette

2.3.1 All virtual meeting participants are required to adhere to the following 
etiquette:

2.3.1 (a)   In Preparation for the Meeting:
 

 Members should ensure that Ipads are sufficiently charged prior to the start 
of the meeting.

 Members should be attired appropriately for the duration of the meeting 
remembering this is a public meeting and live streaming will be taking place.

 Members should ensure all other electronic devices which may interfere with 
signal strength, including recording devices such as Alexa, should be switched 
off for the duration of the meeting.

 

Page 32



5
2.3.1 (b)   Immediately prior to meeting

 Members should join the meeting no later than fifteen minutes before the 
start to allow themselves and the “meeting producer” (Democratic Services 
Officers) the opportunity to test the equipment and functionality of the 
remote technology.

 Any camera (video-feed) should show a blurred background and Members 
should be careful not to allow exempt or confidential papers to be seen in the 
video-feed. 

2.3.1 (c)    During the meeting

 All Members to have their video turned off and microphones muted when not 
talking. 

• Rather than raising one’s hand or rising to be recognised to speak, Members 
should use the Teams chat facility to indicate to the chair that they wish to 
speak. 

 Members should unmute their microphone and turn their cameras on when 
the Chair invites them to speak. 

 The MS Team private chat facility must not be used for individual 
conversations between councillors and/or Councillors and the Chair during a 
virtual meeting.

• Only speak when invited to by the Chair. 

• Only one person may speak at any one time, all other persons participating 
must remain on microphone mute.  This not only facilitates orderly discussion, 
but also significantly improves quality of audio for everyone.

• When invited to speak, turn on the microphone and also the video-feed (if 
available or unless speaking to a diagram, presentation slide or drawing), then 
state your name before you make a comment. 

• When referring to a specific report, page, or slide, it is important to mention 
the report, page number, or slide so that all Members have a clear 
understanding of what is being discussed at all times.

Page 33



6
3. Introduction to Microsoft Teams

3.1 This is a short guide on how to participate in Council meetings on your 
ipads/laptops using Microsoft Teams. 

3.2 ICT have pre-installed Microsoft Teams on all Councillor iPads/laptops. The logo 
for Microsoft Teams is shown below.

3.3 Joining Meetings 

3.3.1 You will receive an email invitation to the relevant meeting. The link within the 
email invite is fully enabled – please join the meeting 15 minutes in advance of 
the meeting start time – see 2.3.1b (above). 

 
3.3.2 Alternatively, you can go to the App and sign-in (with your Council log-in details).

3.3.3 Once you have logged in, click on “Calendar” on the bar at the bottom of the 
screen, then select the meeting from the list on the left-hand side and press 
“Join”.

Page 34



7

3.3.4 You should then see a screen like the one below. Switch your audio and/or video 
on and allow access to your microphone and camera if prompted by the iPad. 
Once your video is turned on, you will see a preview of it in the black box. To 
join the meeting, click “Join now”. 

Page 35



8

3.3.5 You will then join the meeting and see a screen similar to the one below. The 
image only has one person in the meeting. If there were multiple people, the 
screen would be split up into a gallery view. Teams will only show you four 
people at a time, and will automatically select whoever is talking to appear on 
screen so that you can see them. 

3.3.6 At any point during the meeting, you can tap the screen so that the bar in the 
bottom of the above image comes up. You can then click the video button to 
turn your video on or off, or click the microphone button to turn your audio on 
or off. To leave the meeting, press the red hang-up button.

3.4     Viewing your Agenda at the Same Time as the Meeting 

3.4.1 Your iPad/laptop has a split screen function, which will allow you to view a 
digital agenda while participating in the meeting. However, to make things 

Page 36



9
easier during virtual meetings, paper copies of all agendas and reports will be 
provided to you. 

3.5     Meeting Chat 

3.5.1 Microsoft Teams has a chat function, where you can send written messages, for 
example to inform the rest of the people in the meeting that you are having 
issues joining or cannot hear them. This function should also be used to notify 
the chair that you wish to speak. Tap the message icons (left) in the top right 
corner to open the meeting chat. This is a chat with everyone in the meeting.

4. Maintaining WiFi Speeds 

4.1 If your WiFi drops out during a meeting and you can no longer access the 
meeting, you can simply follow the process for joining the meeting outlined in 
paragraph 3.3.3 above again, and you should be able to re-join. 

4.2 Here are some tips for maintaining your WiFi connection: 

 Move your WiFi router away from other devices. Wireless devices such as 
cordless phones, baby monitors, halogen lamps, dimmer switches, stereos and 
computer speakers, TVs and monitors can all affect your WiFi if they’re too close 
to your router. You should place your router on a table or shelf, rather than the 
floor, and keep it switched on. 

 Reduce the number of devices connected to your WiFi. The more devices 
attached to your WiFi, the lower the speed you get. Devices like tablets and 
smartphones often connect in the background, so try switching WiFi connection 
off on these when you’re not using them. If you live with other people who use 

Page 37



10
the WiFi, you may wish to ask them to avoid doing things that use more data, 
such as streaming HD videos, during the meeting. 

 Try wired rather than wireless. For the best broadband speeds, use an Ethernet 
cable to connect your computer directly to your router rather than using WiFi. 
This is a computer networking cable which should give you a faster, more 
reliable connection. 

 Plug your router directly into your main phone socket. Where possible, try not 
to use an extension lead, as these can cause interference which could lower 
your WiFi speed. If you have to use an extension lead, use a new, high-quality 
cable with the shortest possible length. Tangled and coiled cables can also affect 
speeds. 

 

Page 38


	Agenda
	3 Amendment of Constitution to deal with issues relating to Covid-19 and Virtual Meetings
	new chapter 20
	Appendix 1 - Virtual Meeting protocol and etiquete Guidance for Members - FINAL


